
Gerard Saiz, Chair, District I ▫ Jhonathan Aragon, Vice-Chair, District V ▫ 
Troy Richardson, District II ▫ David A. Hyder, District III ▫ Joseph Bizzell, District IV 

Danny Monette, County Manager 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to 
attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office at the Valencia County Administration Building, Los Lunas, 
New Mexico, (505) 866-2014 at least one week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in 
various accessible formats. Please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 

 Board of 

County Commissioners 

August 17, 2022 
Agenda 

5:00 P.M. 
Public Hearing/Business Meeting 

Valencia County Commission Chambers 
444 Luna Ave. 

Los Lunas, NM  87031 

1) Call Meeting to Order
2) Pledge of Allegiance
3) Approval of Agenda
4) Approval of Minutes (08/03/2022 Business Meeting) 

Sponsorship does not indicate endorsement of a given topic 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Public comment is limited to 3 minutes per person. Please use the signup sheet outside the Chamber door. 

DISCUSSION (non-action item(s) 
5) Commissioners, Committees and Reports

PUBLIC HEARING 
Swearing in of participants 

6) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-047 (District Ill, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder) Core Solar
requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: RIO DEL ORO Lot: HIGH SCHOOL
SITE Block: 42 Unit: 45 39.60 ACRES. Located near the corner of N Rio del Oro Loop and Bonita Vista
Blvd north of Valencia High School, Los Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Planned Development (PDJ, filed in
the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, Plat Book C-14-144, 1971. Presenter: Community Planner,
Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154

7) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-058 (District I, P&Z Commissioner Aguilar, BoCC Saiz)
Select ROW requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LANDS OF HUNING
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP Tract: 3, 661.54 AC, PLAT M-491. Located North of the railroad crossing at
Highway 6, Los Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Outland District (ODJ filed in the Office of the Valencia
County Clerk, Plat M-491, 2022. Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to
Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154

Please Silence all Electronic Devices 



Gerard Saiz, Chair, District I ▫ Jhonathan Aragon, Vice-Chair, District V ▫ 
Troy Richardson, District II ▫ David A. Hyder, District III ▫ Joseph Bizzell, District IV 

 Danny Monette, County Manager  
 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to 
attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office at the Valencia County Administration Building, Los Lunas, 
New Mexico, (505) 866-2014 at least one week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in 
various accessible formats. Please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 

PUBLIC HEARING CONT. 
8) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-059 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder)             

Select ROW requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LAND OF CECELIA 
DEBACA Tract: 4A1D 15.23 AC 2001 REV D-4-14. Located North of Vien to Rd East of Mesa Alta Rd., 
Belen, NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1), filed in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, 
Plat K-1020, 2001. Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia County 
Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 
 

9) Solar Field Overla Zone #2022-060 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder) Select ROW 
requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LAND OF CECELIA DEBACA Tract: 
4A1E 17.13 AC 2001 REV D-4-14 REV #4 2001-TR-13. Located North of Vien to Rd East of Mesa Alta 
Rd., Belen, NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1),filed in the Office of the Valencia County 
Clerk, Plat K-1020, 2001. Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia 
County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 
 

10) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-061 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder)               
Select ROW requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LAND OF ARROYO 
RANCH PARTNERSHIP Tract: A 1646.65 AC 1999 REV. Located East of Blue Lace Rd., Belen, NM 
87002, Zoned Outland District [OD). Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to 
Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 

 
11) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-067 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder)                 

One Energy Renewables requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: S: 29 T: 7N R: 1E 
LOTS 59 & 60 20. 00 ACRES+/-. Located at the Northwest corner of Duarte Rd. and Emilia Rd., Los 
Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Outland District (OD). Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: 
Pursuant to Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 

 
12) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-068-077 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder) 
 CVE requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description(s): Subd: LAND OF EARL C GLEASON 

Tract: A 1.3 0 AC D-4-241997 REV (LAND LOCKED}, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY LOU 
HARPER Tract: Bl 1.3 0 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY LOU HARPER 
Tract: B21.29 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY LOU HARPER Tract: B3 
1.29 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY LOU HARPER Tract: B41.28 AC D-
4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF EARL C GLEASON Tract: D 2.49 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF 
ROY LEE HARPER Tract: Cl 1.27 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF ROY LEE HARPER Tract: 
C21.26AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF ROY LEE HARPER Tract: C3 1.26AC D-4-241997 REV, 
Subd: LAND OF ROY LEE HARPER Tract: C41.80 AC D-4-24199 REV, located North of James St., Belen, 
NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1). Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: 
Pursuant to Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 

 
13) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-079 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder) 

Clean Choice Energy requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LAND OF JESUS 
& ERMINIA BACA Tract: B 36.1 8 ACRES MAP 941996 REV. Located North of Vallejos Rd., Los 
Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Rural Residential 2 (RR-2). - Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; 
Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 
 
 
 



Gerard Saiz, Chair, District I ▫ Jhonathan Aragon, Vice-Chair, District V ▫ 
Troy Richardson, District II ▫ David A. Hyder, District III ▫ Joseph Bizzell, District IV 

 Danny Monette, County Manager  
 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to 
attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office at the Valencia County Administration Building, Los Lunas, 
New Mexico, (505) 866-2014 at least one week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in 
various accessible formats. Please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 

PUBLIC HEARING CONT. 
14) Zone Change #2022-063-066 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder) 
 PNM requests a Zone Change from Rural Residential (RR-1) to Heavy Industrial District (J-3). Legal 

Description(s): Subd: LAND OF GUS SAN MIGUEL Lot: Bl 1.25 ACRES 2000 REV FILE WITH 
RRG WEST U2 LOTS A-110, Subd: LAND OF GUS SAN MIGUEL Lot: B2 1.2 5 ACRES 2000 REV 
FILE WITH RRG WEST U2 LOTS A -110, LotB-3, Lot B-4. Located South of Concha Ln., Belen, NM  
87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1), filed in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, Plat K-758, 
2000. Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia County Code of 
Ordinance Section 154.154 

 
 
ACTION ITEMS  

 
 Board Convenes as Indigent Board  

 
15) Approval of Indigent Report.  Presenter: Human Resources Specialist, Maria Garcia; Sponsor: County 

Manager for Regular County Business  
 

Board Reconvenes as Board of County Commissioners 
 
 
16) Approval of Recognition and Recording of Accounts Payable and Payroll Disbursements. Presenter: 

Finance Director Loretta Trujillo; Sponsor:  County Manager for Regular County Business 
 
17) Approval of Resolution 2022-___: State BARS-FY2023 Grants. Presenter: Finance Director Loretta 

Trujillo; Sponsor:  County Manager for Regular County Business 
 
18) Approval of Resolution 2022-___: State BARS FY2023 OAP. Presenter: Finance Director Loretta 

Trujillo; Sponsor:  County Manager for Regular County Business 
 
19) Request for a Resolution Granting a Community Partnership between Valencia County and Dimension 

Energy, LLC.  RE: SFOZ #2021-085 Presenter: Gabriel Luna, Land Use Planner, Sponsor 
Commissioner Troy Richardson 
 

20) Approval of General 2022 Secretary of State MOU. Presenter: Valencia County Clerk, Mike Milam; 
Sponsor: County Manager for Regular County Business 

 
21) Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Valencia County to Submit an Application for the FY23 

Juvenile Adjudication Fund Program. Presenter: Project / Grant Manager, Jeremias Silva, Sponsor: 
County Manager for Regular County Business 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION   
Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:  

a. pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 (H) (7)  
b. personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2) 
c. Administrative Adjudicatory Proceedings 10-15-1 (H) (3)  



Gerard Saiz, Chair, District I ▫ Jhonathan Aragon, Vice-Chair, District V ▫ 
Troy Richardson, District II ▫ David A. Hyder, District III ▫ Joseph Bizzell, District IV 

Danny Monette, County Manager 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to 
attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office at the Valencia County Administration Building, Los Lunas, 
New Mexico, (505) 866-2014 at least one week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in 
various accessible formats. Please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 

i. Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-047
ii. Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-058

iii. Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-059
iv. Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-061
v. Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-067

vi. Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-068-077
vii. Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-079

viii. Zone Change #2022-063-066
 Motion and roll call vote to go into Executive Session for the stated reasons
 Board meets in closed session
 Motion and vote to go back into regular session
 Summary of items discussed in closed session
 Motion and roll call vote that matters discussed in closed session were limited to those specified in

motion for closure, and that no final action was taken, pursuant to the authority in §10-15-1 NMSA
1978

ACTION ITEMS CONT. 
22) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-047 (District Ill, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder) 

Core Solar requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: RIO DEL ORO Lot: HIGH 
SCHOOL SITE Block: 42 Unit: 45 39.60 ACRES. Located near the corner of N Rio del Oro Loop and 
Bonita Vista Blvd north of Valencia High School, Los Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Planned Development 
(PDJ, filed in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, Plat Book C-14-144, 1971., Presenter: Community 
Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154

23) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-058 (District I, P&Z Commissioner Aguilar, BoCC Saiz) 
Select ROW requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LANDS OF HUNING 
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP Tract: 3, 661.54 AC, PLAT M-491. Located North of the railroad crossing at 
Highway 6, Los Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Outland District (ODJ filed in the Office of the Valencia 
County Clerk, Plat M-491, 2022. Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to 
Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154

24) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-059 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder) 
Select ROW requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LAND OF CECELIA 
DEBACA Tract: 4A1D 15.23 AC 2001 REV D-4-14. Located North of Vien to Rd East of Mesa Alta Rd., 
Belen, NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1), filed in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, 
Plat K-1020, 2001. Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia County 
Code of Ordinance Section 154.154

25) Approval Solar Field Overla Zone #2022-060 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder) 
Select ROW requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LAND OF CECELIA 
DEBACA Tract: 4A1E 17.13 AC 2001 REV D-4-14 REV #4 2001-TR-13. Located North of Vien to Rd 
East of Mesa Alta Rd., Belen, NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1),filed in the Office of the 
Valencia County Clerk, Plat K-1020, 2001. Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: 
Pursuant to Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154



Gerard Saiz, Chair, District I ▫ Jhonathan Aragon, Vice-Chair, District V ▫ 
Troy Richardson, District II ▫ David A. Hyder, District III ▫ Joseph Bizzell, District IV 

 Danny Monette, County Manager  
 

If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to 
attend or participate in the hearing or meeting, please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office at the Valencia County Administration Building, Los Lunas, 
New Mexico, (505) 866-2014 at least one week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in 
various accessible formats. Please contact the Valencia County Manager's Office if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 

26) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-061 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder)               
Select ROW requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LAND OF ARROYO 
RANCH PARTNERSHIP Tract: A 1646.65 AC 1999 REV. Located East of Blue Lace Rd., Belen, NM 
87002, Zoned Outland District [OD). Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to 
Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 

 
27) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-067 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder)                 

One Energy Renewables requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: S: 29 T: 7N R: 1E 
LOTS 59 & 60 20. 00 ACRES+/-. Located at the Northwest corner of Duarte Rd. and Emilia Rd., Los 
Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Outland District (OD). Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: 
Pursuant to Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 

 
28) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-068-077 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC 

Hyder). CVE requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description(s): Subd: LAND OF EARL C 
GLEASON Tract: A 1.3 0 AC D-4-241997 REV (LAND LOCKED}, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & 
MARY LOU HARPER Tract: Bl 1.3 0 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY 
LOU HARPER Tract: B21.29 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY LOU 
HARPER Tract: B3 1.29 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY LOU HARPER 
Tract: B41.28 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF EARL C GLEASON Tract: D 2.49 AC D-4-241997 
REV, Subd: LAND OF ROY LEE HARPER Tract: Cl 1.27 AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF ROY 
LEE HARPER Tract: C21.26AC D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF ROY LEE HARPER Tract: C3 1.26AC 
D-4-241997 REV, Subd: LAND OF ROY LEE HARPER Tract: C41.80 AC D-4-24199 REV, located North 
of James St., Belen, NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1). Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe 
Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 

 
29) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-079 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder)           

Clean Choice Energy requests a Solar Field Overlay Zone. Legal Description: Subd: LAND OF JESUS 
& ERMINIA BACA Tract: B 36.1 8 ACRES MAP 941996 REV. Located North of Vallejos Rd., Los 
Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Rural Residential 2 (RR-2). Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; 
Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154 

 
30) Approval of Zone Change #2022-063-066 (District III, P&Z Commissioner Moran, BoCC Hyder) 
 PNM requests a Zone Change from Rural Residential (RR-1) to Heavy Industrial District (J-3). Legal 

Description(s): Subd: LAND OF GUS SAN MIGUEL Lot: Bl 1.25 ACRES 2000 REV FILE WITH 
RRG WEST U2 LOTS A-110, Subd: LAND OF GUS SAN MIGUEL Lot: B2 1.2 5 ACRES 2000 REV 
FILE WITH RRG WEST U2 LOTS A -110, LotB-3, Lot B-4. Located South of Concha Ln., Belen, NM 
87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1), filed in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, Plat K-758, 
2000. Presenter: Community Planner, Gabe Luna; Sponsor: Pursuant to Valencia County Code of 
Ordinance Section 154.154 

 
NEXT COMMISSION MEETINGS 
August 24, 2022 – Commission Retreat from 8:00 A.M. - 5:00 P.M. 
 Los Lunas Transportation Center, 101 Courthouse Rd., Los Lunas, NM  87031 
September 7, 2022 –Business Meeting @ 5:00 P.M. via Facebook Live 
 Valencia County Commission Chambers, 444 Luna Ave., Los Lunas, NM  87031 
 
 
ADJOURN 



Page 1 of 4 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
VALENCIA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
BUSINESS MEETING 

 
AUGUST 3, 2022 

 
Valencia County Commission Chambers, 444 Luna Ave., Los Lunas, NM 87031 

 

PRESENT ABSENT 
Gerard Saiz, Chairman  
Jhonathan Aragon, Vice-Chair  
David A. Hyder, Member  
Troy Richardson, Member  
Joseph Bizzell, Member  
Danny Monette, County Manager  
Adren Nance & Dave Pato, County Attorneys  
Mike Milam, County Clerk  
Press and Public  

 

1)  The meeting was called to order by Chairman Saiz at 5:00 P.M.   

2) Mr. Joe Gonzales led the Pledge of Allegiance.   

3)  Approval of Agenda 
Commissioner Richardson moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Hyder. Roll 
call vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted yes. Motion carried 4-0. 

 
4)  Approval of Minutes: July 13, 2022-ICIP Workshop 
Commissioner Richardson moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Bizzell. Roll 
call vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted yes. Motion carried 4-0. 
 

    July 13, 2022- Public Hearing 
Commissioner Bizzell moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Richardson. Roll 
call vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted yes. Motion carried 4-0. 
 

July 14, 2022- Special Public Hearing 
Commissioner Bizzell moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Richardson. Roll 
call vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted yes. Motion carried 4-0. 
 

July 27, 2022 Special Business Meeting 
Commissioner Richardson moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Hyder. Roll 
call vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted yes. Motion carried 4-0. 
     
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Denise Williams commented that she attended the July 14th public meeting and learned 
three hard lessons about how Valencia County government is run.  
 
DISCUSSION (NON-ACTION) ITEM(S): 
5) Commissioners, Committees and Reports. 
Chairman Saiz reported that he attended the NACO conference held in Aurora, CO last 
week. The conference was very beneficial and well worth it, he recommended that the 
other commissioners attend in the future.  
 
Employee of the Month. Presenter: Human Resources Director, Orlando Montoya 
Mr. Montoya introduced Renee Benavidez, from the Older Americans Program, as the 
employee of the month. He stated that Ms. Benavidez works at the Los Lunas Center and 
is a great asset to the county, she has been with the county for 29 years. Ms. Benavidez 
stated that she was pleasantly surprised to receive the award, she truly loves what she 
does and doesn’t think of it as a job. 
 



  Page 2 of 4 
 
Minutes of August 3, 2022 Business Meeting 
  
Chief Propp informed the commission that one of the fire engines had a catastrophic 
failure. His department is looking to enter into an agreement with NMFA to purchase a 
new fire engine. The district that would be receiving it has the money available.  Chief 
Propp reported that during the month of July his department ran 512 calls. Within the next 
two weeks they are hoping to staff a second station to have coverage in the El Cerro and 
Los Chavez area.  
 
Mr. Monette reported that each commissioner was given the county’s strategic 5-year 
plan that was put together back in 2019, this is what will be reviewed at the upcoming 
commission retreat.  
 
PRESENTATION: 
6) Quarterly Report – Extension Office. Presenter: Sierra Cain; Sponsor: County 
Manager, Danny Monette 
Ms. Sierra Cain introduced the intern, Marisol Olivas, who has been assisting her since 
May. Ms. Cain briefed the commission on the many activities that the 4-H youth of the 
county have recently participated in and been involved in.  She asked if any member of 
the commission would like to sit on the selection committee for the Ag agent position. 
Commissioner Bizzell stated that he would like to be a member of the selection 
committee. Ms. Olivas briefly spoke about her experiences working as a summer intern 
for the Extension office.  
 
Commissioner Aragon arrived at 5:16 p.m. 
 
7) Relating to the Proposed Development and Operation of a First Response Facility 
Located in the Proximity of the Mid-Valley Airpark. Presenter: Kurt Young of Oconner 
Flowers, LLC; Sponsor: County Chair, Gerard Saiz 
Mr. Kurt Young stated that he has several businesses in the county. He owns the land 
south of the old blue hangers in the Mid-Valley Airpark. The airpark does not have a 
terminal, a fixed base operation or a police or fire station. Mr. Young stated that other 
counties own their own airport and have a rapid response center. A fire force is also 
looking to establish a base in New Mexico as well.  His parcel of land would be ideal for 
the county to build a rapid response center. He stated that he proposes to sell the 
property to the county and have the county develop it with infrastructure money from the 
state. He would like to enter into a non-binding MOU with the county that as long as the 
money was found at the state level it would continue. Martin Suazo, Mr. Young’s 
development partner, stated that the MOU is non-binding unless money is able to be 
found to fund the rapid response. Commissioner Hyder asked if the fire chief had any 
thoughts on this project. Chief Propp stated that this is the first that he has heard of the 
proposed idea but something like that on the property makes since, it could be a good 
idea. (See Exhibit A) 
 
ACTION ITEM(S): 
 
8) Approval of Resolution 2022-___, Adopting 2024-2028 Infrastructure Capital 
Improvement Plan (ICIP). Presenter: Public Works Director, Lina Benavidez; Sponsor: 
County Manager for Regular County Business 
Ms. Benavidez stated that an ICIP workshop was held on July 13th, all comments and 
requests were taken into consideration. She listed the top five projects as follows: 

1. New Jarales fire station 
2. Highland Meadows Community/Senior center  
3. Multi-use parks  
4. VC Flood Protection Plan 
5. Social Economic plan flooding  

 
She also stated that the OAP ICIP projects include:  

1. Del Rio Center renovations 
2. Belen center outdoor dining  
3. Meadow Lake kitchen equipment  

 
Commissioner Hyder moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Bizzell. Roll call 
vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Commissioner Aragon voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted 
yes. Motion carried 5-0.  
 
County Clerk Milam announced Resolution 2022-64. (See Exhibit B) 



Page 3 of 4 
 

Minutes of August 3, 2022 Business Meeting 

9) Consideration to Approve the Aging & Long-Term Services Department (ALTSD) 
Capital Appropriation Project #A21F2065. Presenter: Project/Grant Manager, Jeremias 
Silva; Sponsor: County Manager for Regular County Business 
Mr. Silva stated that the county has been awarded $100,000.00 to purchase and equip 
vehicles for the Belen Senior Center, there is no match required.   
 
Commissioner Bizzell moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Hyder.  Roll call 
vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Commissioner Aragon voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted 
yes. Motion carried 5-0. (See Exhibit C) 
 
10) Consideration to Accept FY23 Nutrition Service Incentive Program (Contract No. 
2022-2023-60028-N). Presenter: Grant Coordinator, Joshua Zuni; Sponsor: County 
Manager for Regular County Business 
Mr. Zuni stated that the county was awarded $88,114.78 for the OAP to purchase 
domestically sourced products, there is no match required.   
 
Commissioner Hyder moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Aragon. Roll call 
vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Commissioner Aragon voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted 
yes. Motion carried 5-0. (See Exhibit D) 
 
11) Consideration to Accept FY23 Senior Employment Program Host Agency Sub Award 
(Contract No. 2022-2023-60028-S). Presenter: Grant Coordinator, Joshua Zuni; 
Sponsor: County Manager for Regular County Business 
Mr. Zuni stated that the senior employment program funds two part time positions for the 
OAP. The awarded amount is $22,604.00 which leaves the county with an anticipated 
shortfall of $4,937.18. Mr. Zuni stated that he recommends using ARPA funds to address 
the shortfall.    
 
Commissioner Hyder moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Aragon. Roll call 
vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Commissioner Aragon voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted 
yes. Motion carried 5-0. (See Exhibit E) 
 
12) Consideration to Accept FY23 Title III Federal and State Sub-Award 2022-2023-
60028. Presenter: Grant Coordinator, Joshua Zuni; Sponsor: County Manager for 
Regular County Business 
Mr. Zuni stated that this award funds the majority of the OAP program. The programs 
operating budget is $1,043.680.51 of this amount $500,000.00 comes from Valencia 
County, $158,851.00 comes from federal funding while $384,000.00 comes from state 
funding.  
 
Commissioner Hyder moved for approval. Seconded by Commissioner Aragon. Roll call 
vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Commissioner Aragon voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted 
yes. Motion carried 5-0. (See Exhibit F) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed 
session: 
a. pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 (H) (7) 
b. personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2) 
c. real property 10-15-1 (H) (8) 

i. Lazy Lane Corridor Real Property 
Mr. Nance stated that what was to be discussed is limited to what was presented on the 
agenda for executive session. 
 
Commissioner Aragon moved to go into executive session. Seconded by Commissioner 
Hyder. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. 
Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Commissioner Aragon voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted 
yes. Motion carried 5-0. @5:37 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Hyder moved to return to regular session. Seconded by Commissioner 
Bizzell. Roll call vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted 
yes. Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Commissioner Aragon voted yes. Chairman Saiz 
voted yes. Motion carried 5-0. @5:57 p.m. 



  Page 4 of 4 
 
Minutes of August 3, 2022 Business Meeting 
  
Mr. Nance stated that the items discussed in executive session were limited to those in 
the motion for closure and no final action was taken.  
 
Commissioner Richardson moved for approval of the summary as stated by Mr. Nance. 
Seconded by Commissioner Aragon. Roll call vote. Commissioner Richardson voted yes. 
Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Commissioner Aragon 
voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted yes. Motion carried 5-0 
 
ACTION ITEMS CONT. 
13) Consideration of Disposition of Lazy Lane Corridor Property to New Mexico 
Department of Transportation (NMDOT). Presenter: Public Works Director, Lina 
Benavidez; Sponsor: County Manager for Regular County Business 
Ms. Benavidez stated that NMDOT is requesting to acquire the section of Lazy Lane that is 
needed for the Jarales Road project, the appraisal of that section came out to $4,050.00 
Mr. Nance advised that the commission direct the county manager effectuate the 
transfer, including doing a claim of exemption and receipt of funds.  
 
Commissioner Hyder moved for approval based on the recommendation from county 
legal. Seconded by Commissioner Aragon. Roll call vote. Commissioner Richardson voted 
yes. Commissioner Bizzell voted yes. Commissioner Hyder voted yes. Commissioner 
Aragon voted yes. Chairman Saiz voted yes. Motion carried 5-0. (See Exhibit G) 
 
NEXT COMMISSION MEETING: 
August 17, 2022 –Public Hearing/Business Meeting @ 5:00 P.M. via Facebook Live 

Valencia County Commission Chambers, 444 Luna Ave., Los Lunas, NM 87031 
 
August 24, 2022 – Commission Retreat from 8:00 A.M. - 5:00 P.M. 

Los Lunas Transportation Center, 101 Courthouse Rd., Los Lunas, NM 87031 
 
September 7, 2022 –Business Meeting @ 5:00 P.M. via Facebook Live 
  Valencia County Commission Chambers, 444 Luna Ave., Los Lunas, NM 87031 

14)  Adjournment 
Chairman Saiz adjourned the meeting. TIME: 5:59 P.M. 
 
NOTE: All proposals, documents, items, etc., pertaining to items on the agenda of the 
August 3, 2022 Business Meeting (presented to the Board of County Commissioners) are 
attached in consecutive order as stated in these minutes. 

VALENCIA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

GERARD SAIZ, CHAIRMAN 
 
 JHONATHAN ARAGON, VICE-CHAIR 

DAVID A. HYDER, MEMBER 

TROY RICHARDSON, MEMBER 

JOSEPH BIZZELL , MEMBER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 

MIKE MILAM COUNTY CLERK 

 

DATE 

Minutes are not verbatim. The complete audio file from this meeting can be heard at 
https://www.co.valencia.nm.us/ 
 
 



































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































17
Approval of Resolution 
2022-___: State BARS - 

FY2023 Grants 



18
Approval of Resolution
2022-___: State BARS -

FY2023 OAP



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  Troy Richardson, District 2    
Department Head: Community Development Director, Vacant 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 4, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Resolution Granting a Community Partnership between Valencia 
County and Dimension Energy, LLC.  RE: SFOZ #2021-085 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for Board of County Commissioners approval of a resolution granting a community 
partnership agreement between Valencia County and Dimension Energy, LLC. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
Dimension Energy LLC was approved for a Solar Field Overlay Zone by the Board of County 
Commissioners on March 16, 2022.  The property located at Subd:  ORONA INVESTMENTS 
SUBDIVISION, Tract:  1, 77.15 ac, 2012 REV C-5-1, Township 6N, Range 3E, Section 6; also known 
as 25 El Cerro Mission Blvd, Los Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Outland District (OD), Filed in Book N, 
Page 100 in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk.   
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
The Community Partnership Agreement is designed to promote the Valencia County CSG LLC Project 
in Valencia County by educating local residents about the economic and environmental benefits 
associated with the project, and by providing the County with $100 to be earmarked for the VCFD, VC 
Animal Control, VC Parks and Recreation, the OAP, or any other organization designated by the 
County.  By virtue of this Agreement, the Valencia County CSG LLC further proposes to award an 
additional $5,000.00 to the organization with the highest number of subscriber selections. (David M. 
Pato) 
 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 
 
Purchasing: 
Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 
 
 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 



Dimension Municipal 
Partnership Program
Share the benefits of local solar energy  
and lower monthly electricity costs for  
your residents.

Why New Mexico?

The New Mexico Public 
Regulation Commission 
(PRC) just approved a new 
rule that will allow the first 
community solar farms 
to be approved this year. 
Community solar provides 
an affordable off-site 
clean energy option for 
households.

What is community solar?

Community solar is a state program that gives everyone the 
opportunity to share the benefits of clean, renewable energy 
without the need to install expensive solar panels at home. 
Residents will save money on their electricity bill every month. It’s 
an easy way to improve the health and well-being of your local 
New Mexico community.

 � Investment in your  
local community

 � Priority spots for your 
organization’s members

 � Energy savings for the 
community

 � Funding for local programs, 
organizations, and projects

 � Workforce development 
and educational programs



Why partner with Dimension?

New Mexico is looking for community solar projects 
that maximize the local benefits and that will create 
long-standing partnerships between projects and local 
communities. This aligns strongly with Dimension’s core 
values, which are rooted in the belief that community solar 
is essential to providing renewable energy access to under 
served populations. We strive to build projects that also 
build up the communities where they are located.

The Dimension Municipal Partnership Program

We are partnering with municipalities across New Mexico 
to ensure that the benefits of our projects stay in local 
communities. There are a number of different ways 
Dimension can partner with municipalities depending on 
municipality goals and priorities, including: 

 � Prioritizing space on our community solar projects for 
local residents through: 

1. Collaborative outreach and education to 
educate and enroll residents (e.g., direct 
mail, community events, town hall meetings, 
municipal website, etc.)

2. Financial incentives for local residents

 � Funding for municipal departments and other local 
organizations

 � Support for workforce development initiatives to build 
a qualified local community solar workforce

 � Implementation of K-12 STEM educational programs

 � Support for any other priority projects in the 
community

 � Initiatives aimed at maximizing the benefits for low 
income residents



Dimension Renewable Energy strives to be more 
than a market participant by paving the way 
toward clean energy access for all, nationwide.
dimension-energy.com

Partner now to ensure 
benefits later

The Public Regulation Commission is running a 
competitive solicitation for a limited number of 
community solar projects. Only projects that maximize 
the benefits to local communities through strong 
partnerships will be awarded capacity. Partnerships 
put in place today ensure projects and their associated 
benefits become reality tomorrow.

We are excited to work with you and increase solar 
access for all!



 
VALENCIA COUNTY  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
RESOLUTION № 2022-____ 

GRANT A COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT BETWEEN VALENCIA 

COUNTY AND DIMENSION RE LLC 
 

 
PREAMBLE:  
 

WHEREAS, Dimension RE LLC ("Dimension"), which created a development 
entity, Valencia CSG LLC, applied to Valencia County for the creation of a Community Solar 
Energy System to be located at 25 El Cerro Mission Boulevard (Parcel R224774) ("Property"); 
and 

WHEREAS, Dimension is undertaking the development of the Property to include 
a 5MWac single-axis tracker ground mount solar energy system (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Dimension appeared before the Planning and Zoning Board and 

County Commission during public hearings in January 2022 and March 2022 respectively; and 
 
WHEREAS, as part of Dimension's approval process, the Valencia Community 

Development Department released a Multi-Purpose permit #2022138 on April 13, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, if the Valencia CSG LLC Project is awarded into the New Mexico 

Community Solar Program; and  
 
WHEREAS, Valencia County desires to build an innovative partnership to 

collaboratively market the opportunity to subscribe to the Project to Valencia County residents 
in an effort to ensure that the local community receives the benefits from the project; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the forementioned events, the parties, 

intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Dimension will develop a marketing and outreach campaign aimed at educating local 
residents about the economic and environmental benefits associated with the Valencia 
CSG LLC Project, and more specifically the benefits associated with becoming a 
subscriber of the project; and 
 

2. Dimension will work to prioritize local Valencia County residents in its efforts to fully 
subscribe the project; and 



3. For each local resident that enrolls in the Valencia CSG LLC Project, Dimension will 
donate $100.00 to Valencia County designated public services and programs per 
Valencia County. Subscribers will be able to select from the following list of County-
selected organizations: Valencia County Fire Department, Valencia County Animal 
Control, Valencia County Parks and Recreation, the Older Americans Program (OAP), 
or any other organization that County wishes to designate. Dimension will fund all 
donation amounts on the first day the facility is operational; and 
 

4. Dimension will award an additional $5,000.00 to the organization with the highest 
number of subscriber selections. Dimension will fund this amount on the first day the 
facility is operational; and 

 
5. Valencia CSG LLC will comply with all conditions of approval placed on it by the 

Planning Board. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Resolution shall be approved by the County 
Commission as to form and content. 
 
Adopted August 17, 2022 
At a County Commission Meeting 
Held at the Valencia County Courthouse 
 
 
BY ORDER OF THE COUNTY COMMISSION 
OF VALENCIA COUNTY 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
TROY RICHARDSON, DISTRICT 2 
 



 
 

 
 

Commission Sponsor: County Manager for Regular County Business 
Department Head: Mike Milam, Valencia County Clerk 
Individual Making Request: Mike Milam, Valencia County Clerk 
Presentation at Meeting on: August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted: August 8, 2022  
Title of Request: Approval of General 2022 Secretary of State MOU 
 
 

Action Requested of Commission:   Approval by the BOCC as authority for finance. 
 
Information Background and Rationale: The Secretary of State’s Office has been appropriated 
funds from the Legislature to pay for the costs of conducting and administering the General 2022 
Election, a statutory responsibility of the County Clerk.  All statutory and reasonable costs, usually 
funded by the County, will be funded before the election takes place.  The Secretary of State’s 
office has evaluated the needs of Valencia County and has approved funds in the amount of 
$65,000 for the General Election.  Any additional funding that may be needed after the election 
will be considered by the Secretary of State on a case by case basis.  Any unused funds will be 
refunded to the Secretary of State’s office before December 29, 2022. 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
The FY2023 budget for the Bureau of Elections department has been approved by the BOCC. 
These revenues will offset the projected expenses in the amount of $65,000. 
 

Legal: 
The MOU is a mechanism for the State to pay for the additional duties placed on the clerk pursuant 
to the 2019 local election law change. (Adren Nance) 
 

Finance: 
A budget adjustment will be forthcoming to record these revenues into our FY2023 budget. 
(Loretta Trujillo) 
 
Purchasing: 
Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 

 
 

 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item?   Yes                    No 
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 

 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 















   
 
Commission Sponsor: County Manager for Regular County Business 
Department Head: Loretta Trujillo, Finance Director 
Individual Making Request: Jeremias Silva, Project / Grant Manager 
Presentation at Meeting on: August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted: August 9, 2022 
Title of Request: Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Valencia County to Submit an 
Application for the FY23 Juvenile Adjudication Fund Program 

Action Requested of Commission:  
Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Valencia County to Submit an Application for the FY23 
Juvenile Adjudication Fund Program 
 
Information Background and Rationale: 
The Legislature enacted Section 34-16-1 NMSA 1978 establishing a juvenile adjudication fund 
grant program to fund programs providing alternative procedures of adjudication for juveniles 
charged with traffic offenses and other misdemeanors.  Valencia County has been acting as fiscal 
agent for the YDI Valencia County Teen Court since 2012.  To become eligible and considered for 
the Juvenile Adjudication Funds, a resolution signed by a county official must be included with the 
application. 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
The grant request is $20,000.00 with a required match amount of ($3,400.00) which will be borne 
by YDI.  The funding requests includes 10% administrative fee in the amount of $2,000.00. 
 
Legal: 
The Board of County Commissioners is within its authority to apply for the juvenile adjudication 
fund. NMSA 1978 34-16-1 (2009) (“The “juvenile adjudication fund” is created in the state 
treasury to provide an alternative procedure of adjudication for juveniles charged with 
misdemeanor offenses to help alleviate the docket of the juvenile judicial system. The fund 
consists of juvenile adjudication fees levied and collected pursuant to Section 66-8-116. 3 NMSA 
1978. Money in the fund at the end of a fiscal year shall not revert to any other fund. The 
department of finance and administration shall administer the fund, and money in the fund is 
appropriated to the department of finance and administration to administer the fund and to provide 
an alternative adjudication process for juveniles charged with traffic offenses and other 
misdemeanors. Money expended to administer the fund shall not exceed five percent of the money 
credited to the fund in each fiscal year. Disbursements from the fund shall be made by warrant of 
the secretary of finance and administration pursuant to vouchers signed by the secretary or the 
secretary’s authorized representative.”) (Adren Nance) 
 
Finance: 
The submittal of the application creates no financial impact to the County. Should we be awarded 
the grant, a budget adjustment will be necessary to include this in our FY23 budget. (Loretta 
Trujillo) 
 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 



Purchasing: 
Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 
 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Valencia County to Submit an Application for the FY23 Juvenile 
Adjudication Fund Program 
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item?   Yes                    No 
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



____________ RESOLUTION 

 Resolution No. __________       

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING _______________ TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION, LOCAL GOVERNMENT DIVISION 

TO PARTICIPATE IN THE JUVENILE ADJUDICATION FUND PROGRAM. 

WHEREAS, the Legislature enacted Section 34-16-1 NMSA 1978 establishing a 
juvenile adjudication fund grant program to fund programs providing alternative procedures of 
adjudication for juveniles charged with traffic offenses and other misdemeanors.; and 

WHEREAS, the Legislature enacted Section 66-8-116.3 NMSA 1978 as amended, 
creating the juvenile adjudication fund by assessing fees levied and collected; and 

WHEREAS, the County or Municipality along with participating agencies is making 
application to the Department of Finance and Administration, Local Government Division for 
supplemental program funding. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the governing body of 
__________________, and that the chair, or designee ____________ on behalf of the 
Governing Body and all participating agencies hereby authorizes the submission of the FY23 
application for the Juvenile Adjudication Fund under the regulations established by the Local 
Government Division, 2.110.5 NMAC.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the governing body at its meeting of            
        , 2022. 

____________________________ 
County Commission Chair or Mayor 

Attest: 

__________________________  
County or Municipality Clerk (SEAL) 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  as per Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154    
Department Head: Community Development Director 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 1, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  (Core Solar) SFOZ #2022-047 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for a Solar Field Overlay Zone currently zoned Planned Development (PD).  Based upon 
the application and all available supporting information, this request does appear to meet all the 
applicable standards and criteria for a zone change within Sections 154.154 of the Valencia County 
Zoning Code. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
The property owners are requesting a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  Subd:  RIO DEL ORO Lot:  HIGH 
SCHOOL SITE Block: 42 Unit: 45 39.60 ACRES.  Located near the corner of N Rio del Oro Loop and 
Bonita Vista Blvd north of Valencia High School, Los Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Planned Development 
(PD), filed in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, Plat Book C-14-144, 1971. 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
Pursuant to §154.061(C), a quasi-judicial zone change to a zoning map may be authorized provided 
that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the following criteria:  
      (1) The proposed change is consistent with the goals, policies and any other applicable 
provisions of the comprehensive plan;       

(2) The proposed change is appropriate considering the surrounding land uses, the density and 
pattern of development in the area, any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the 
proposed amendment and the availability of utilities and services likely to be needed by the anticipated 
uses in the proposed district; and  
      (3) The proposed change enhances the county's protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare of Valencia County (David Pato) 

 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 
 
 
 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

Purchasing: 
☒   Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 
 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  as per Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154    
Department Head: Community Development Director 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 1, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  (Core Solar) SFOZ #2022-058 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for a Solar Field Overlay Zone currently zoned Outland District (OD).  Based upon the 
application and all available supporting information, this request does appear to meet all the applicable 
standards and criteria for a zone change within Sections 154.154 of the Valencia County Zoning Code. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
The property owners are requesting a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  Subd: LANDS OF HUNING LIMITED 
PARTNERSHIP Tract: 3, 661.54 AC, PLAT M-491.  Located North of the railroad crossing at Highway 
6, Los Lunas, NM 87031, Zoned Outland District (OD), filed in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, 
Plat M-491, 2022. 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
Pursuant to §154.061(C), a quasi-judicial zone change to a zoning map may be authorized provided 
that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the following criteria:  
      (1) The proposed change is consistent with the goals, policies and any other applicable 
provisions of the comprehensive plan;       

(2) The proposed change is appropriate considering the surrounding land uses, the density and 
pattern of development in the area, any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the 
proposed amendment and the availability of utilities and services likely to be needed by the anticipated 
uses in the proposed district; and  
      (3) The proposed change enhances the county's protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare of Valencia County (David Pato) 

 
 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 
 
 
 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

Purchasing: 
☒   Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  as per Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154    
Department Head: Community Development Director 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 1, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  (Core Solar) SFOZ #2022-059 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for a Solar Field Overlay Zone currently zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1).  Based upon 
the application and all available supporting information, this request does appear to meet all the 
applicable standards and criteria for a zone change within Sections 154.154 of the Valencia County 
Zoning Code. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
The property owners are requesting a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  Subd: LAND OF CECELIA DEBACA 
Tract: 4A1D 15.23 AC 2001 REV D-4-14.  Located North of Viento Rd East of Mesa Alta Rd., Belen, 
NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1), filed in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, Plat K-
1020, 2001. 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
Pursuant to §154.061(C), a quasi-judicial zone change to a zoning map may be authorized provided 
that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the following criteria:  
      (1) The proposed change is consistent with the goals, policies and any other applicable 
provisions of the comprehensive plan;       

(2) The proposed change is appropriate considering the surrounding land uses, the density and 
pattern of development in the area, any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the 
proposed amendment and the availability of utilities and services likely to be needed by the anticipated 
uses in the proposed district; and  
      (3) The proposed change enhances the county's protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare of Valencia County (David Pato) 

 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 
 
 
 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

Purchasing: 
☒   Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 
 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  as per Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154    
Department Head: Community Development Director 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 1, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  (Core Solar) SFOZ #2022-060 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for a Solar Field Overlay Zone currently zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1).  Based upon 
the application and all available supporting information, this request does appear to meet all the 
applicable standards and criteria for a zone change within Sections 154.154 of the Valencia County 
Zoning Code. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
The property owners are requesting a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  Subd: LAND OF CECELIA DEBACA 
Tract: 4A1E 17.13 AC 2001 REV D-4-14 REV #4 2001-TR-13.  Located North of Viento Rd East of 
Mesa Alta Rd., Belen, NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1), filed in the Office of the Valencia 
County Clerk, Plat K-1020, 2001. 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
Pursuant to §154.061(C), a quasi-judicial zone change to a zoning map may be authorized provided 
that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the following criteria:  
      (1) The proposed change is consistent with the goals, policies and any other applicable 
provisions of the comprehensive plan;       

(2) The proposed change is appropriate considering the surrounding land uses, the density and 
pattern of development in the area, any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the 
proposed amendment and the availability of utilities and services likely to be needed by the anticipated 
uses in the proposed district; and  
      (3) The proposed change enhances the county's protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare of Valencia County (David Pato) 

 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 
 
 
 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

Purchasing: 
☒   Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 
 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  as per Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154    
Department Head: Community Development Director 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 1, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  (Core Solar) SFOZ #2022-061 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for a Solar Field Overlay Zone currently zoned Outland District (OD).  Based upon the 
application and all available supporting information, this request does appear to meet all the applicable 
standards and criteria for a zone change within Sections 154.154 of the Valencia County Zoning Code. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
The property owners are requesting a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  Subd:  LAND OF ARROYO RANCH 
PARTNERSHIP Tract: A 1646.65 AC 1999 REV.  Located East of Blue Lace Rd., Belen, NM 87002, 
Zoned Outland District (OD). 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
Pursuant to §154.061(C), a quasi-judicial zone change to a zoning map may be authorized provided 
that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the following criteria:  
      (1) The proposed change is consistent with the goals, policies and any other applicable 
provisions of the comprehensive plan;       

(2) The proposed change is appropriate considering the surrounding land uses, the density and 
pattern of development in the area, any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the 
proposed amendment and the availability of utilities and services likely to be needed by the anticipated 
uses in the proposed district; and  
      (3) The proposed change enhances the county's protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare of Valencia County (David Pato) 

 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 
 
Purchasing: 
☒   Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  as per Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154    
Department Head: Community Development Director 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 1, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  (OneEnergy) SFOZ #2022-067 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for a Solar Field Overlay Zone currently zoned Outland District (OD).  Based upon the 
application and all available supporting information, this request does appear to meet all the applicable 
standards and criteria for a zone change within Sections 154.154 of the Valencia County Zoning Code. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
The property owners are requesting a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  S: 29 T: 7N R: 1E LOTS 59 & 60 20.00 
ACRES +/-.  Located at the Northwest corner of Duarte Rd. and Emilia Rd., Los Lunas, NM 87031, 
Zoned Outland District (OD). 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
Pursuant to §154.061(C), a quasi-judicial zone change to a zoning map may be authorized provided 
that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the following criteria:  
      (1) The proposed change is consistent with the goals, policies and any other applicable 
provisions of the comprehensive plan;       

(2) The proposed change is appropriate considering the surrounding land uses, the density and 
pattern of development in the area, any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the 
proposed amendment and the availability of utilities and services likely to be needed by the anticipated 
uses in the proposed district; and  
      (3) The proposed change enhances the county's protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare of Valencia County (David Pato) 

 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 
 
Purchasing: 
☒   Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  as per Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154    
Department Head: Community Development Director 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 1, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  (CVE) SFOZ #2022-068-077 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for a Solar Field Overlay Zone currently zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1).  Based upon 
the application and all available supporting information, this request does appear to meet all the 
applicable standards and criteria for a zone change within Sections 154.154 of the Valencia County 
Zoning Code. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
The property owners are requesting a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  Subd: LAND OF EARL C GLEASON 
Tract: A 1.30 AC D-4-24 1997 REV (LAND LOCKED), Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY 
LOU HARPER Tract: B1 1.30 AC D-4-24 1997 REV, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY LOU 
HARPER Tract: B2 1.29 AC D-4-24 1997 REV, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY LOU 
HARPER Tract: B3 1.29 AC D-4-24 1997 REV, Subd: LAND OF KENNETH W & MARY LOU 
HARPER Tract: B4 1.28 AC D-4-24 1997 REV, Subd: LAND OF EARL C GLEASON Tract: D 2.49 
AC D-4-24 1997 REV, Subd: LAND OF ROY LEE HARPER Tract: C1 1.27 AC D-4-24 1997 REV, 
Subd: LAND OF ROY LEE HARPER Tract: C2 1.26 AC D-4-24 1997 REV, Subd: LAND OF ROY 
LEE HARPER Tract: C3 1.26 AC D-4-24 1997 REV, Subd: LAND OF ROY LEE HARPER Tract: C4 
1.80 AC D-4-24 1997 REV, located North of James St., Belen, NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 
(RR-1). 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
Pursuant to §154.061(C), a quasi-judicial zone change to a zoning map may be authorized provided 
that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the following criteria:  
      (1) The proposed change is consistent with the goals, policies and any other applicable 
provisions of the comprehensive plan;       

(2) The proposed change is appropriate considering the surrounding land uses, the density and 
pattern of development in the area, any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the 
proposed amendment and the availability of utilities and services likely to be needed by the anticipated 
uses in the proposed district; and  

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

      (3) The proposed change enhances the county's protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare of Valencia County (David Pato) 

 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 
 
Purchasing: 
☒   Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 
 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  as per Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154    
Department Head: Community Development Director 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 1, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Solar Field Overlay Zone. (Clean Choice Energy) SFOZ #2022-079 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for a Solar Field Overlay Zone currently zoned Rural Residential 2 (RR-2).  Based upon 
the application and all available supporting information, this request does appear to meet all the 
applicable standards and criteria for a zone change within Sections 154.154 of the Valencia County 
Zoning Code. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
The property owners are requesting a Solar Field Overlay Zone.  Subd: LAND OF JESUS & ERMINIA 
BACA Tract: B 36.18 ACRES MAP 94 1996 REV.  Located North of Vallejos Rd., Los Lunas, NM 
87031, Zoned Rural Residential 2 (RR-2). 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
Pursuant to §154.061(C), a quasi-judicial zone change to a zoning map may be authorized provided 
that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the following criteria:  
      (1) The proposed change is consistent with the goals, policies and any other applicable 
provisions of the comprehensive plan;       

(2) The proposed change is appropriate considering the surrounding land uses, the density and 
pattern of development in the area, any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the 
proposed amendment and the availability of utilities and services likely to be needed by the anticipated 
uses in the proposed district; and  
      (3) The proposed change enhances the county's protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare of Valencia County (David Pato) 

 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 
 
Purchasing: 
☒   Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

 
 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

            
 
Commission Sponsor:  as per Valencia County Code of Ordinance Section 154.154    
Department Head: Community Development Director 
Individual Making Request: Gabriel Luna 
Presentation:  August 17, 2022 
Date Submitted:  August 1, 2022 
Title of Request: Request for a Zone Change from Rural Residential 2 (RR-2) to Heavy Industrial 
District (I-3) for future development. (PNM) ZC #2022-063-066 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Requested of Commission: 
This request is for a zone change from Rural Residential 1 (RR-1) to Heavy Industrial District (I-3).  
Based upon the application and all available supporting information, this request does appear to meet all 
the applicable standards and criteria for a zone change within Sections 154.061 of the Valencia County 
Zoning Code. 
 
Information Background and Rationale:   
The property owners are requesting a Zone Change for future development.  Subd: LAND OF GUS SAN 
MIGUEL Lot: B1 1.25 ACRES 2000 REV FILE WITH RRG WEST U2 LOTS A-110, Subd: LAND OF 
GUS SAN MIGUEL Lot: B2 1.25 ACRES 2000 REV FILE WITH RRG WEST U2 LOTS A -110, Lot 
B-3, Lot B-4.   Located South of Concha Ln., Belen, NM 87002, Zoned Rural Residential 1 (RR-1), filed 
in the Office of the Valencia County Clerk, Plat K-758, 2000. 
 
 
What is the Financial Impact of this Request: 
No overall financial impact of this request. 
 
Legal:  
Pursuant to §154.061(C), a quasi-judicial zone change to a zoning map may be authorized provided 
that the applicant demonstrates compliance with the following criteria:  
      (1) The proposed change is consistent with the goals, policies and any other applicable 
provisions of the comprehensive plan;       

(2) The proposed change is appropriate considering the surrounding land uses, the density and 
pattern of development in the area, any changes which may have occurred in the vicinity to support the 
proposed amendment and the availability of utilities and services likely to be needed by the anticipated 
uses in the proposed district; and  
      (3) The proposed change enhances the county's protection of the public health, safety and 
welfare of Valencia County (David Pato) 

 
Finance:  
Not applicable (Loretta Trujillo) 

VALENCIA COUNTY 
Board of County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 



Revised 1.1.18 – J.R. 
 

 
 
 
Purchasing: 
☒   Not Applicable – Agenda Item Does Not Include the Purchase of Goods and/or Services (Denisse 
Barrera) 
 
 
 
 
Do you recommend approval of this Agenda Request? Yes                 No 
 
Are you seeking direction from the Commission on this Agenda Request?  Yes           No 
If so, what?  
 
Commissioner requesting this agenda item? Yes                    No  
If yes, the Commission will need to discuss further.  
 


	3) Approval of Agenda
	4) Approval of Minutes (08/17/2022 Business Meeting)
	5) Commissioners, Committees and Reports
	6) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-047
	7) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-058
	8) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-059
	9) Solar Field Overla Zone #2022-060
	10) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-061
	11) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-067
	12) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-068-077
	13) Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-079
	14) Zone Change #2022-063-066
	15) Approval of Indigent Report.
	16) Approval of Recognition and Recording of Accounts Payable and Payroll Disbursements.
	17) Approval of Resolution 2022-___: State BARS-FY2023
	18) Approval of Resolution 2022-___: State BARS FY2023 OAP.
	19) Request for a Resolution 
Granting a Community 
Partnership between 
Valencia County and 
Dimension 
Energy, LLC. RE: SFOZ 
#2021-085
	20) Approval of General 2022 Secretary of State MOU.
	21) Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Valencia County to Submit an Application for the FY23

Juvenile Adjudication Fund Program.
	21) Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing Valencia County to Submit an Application for the FY23

Juvenile Adjudication Fund Program.
	22) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-047
	23) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-058
	24) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-059
	25) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-060 
	26) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-061
	27) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-067
	28) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-068-077
	29) Approval of Solar Field Overlay Zone #2022-079
	30) Approval of Zone Change #2022-063-066

	County Resolution: Valencia County 
	Resolution Number: 22-
	County/Municipality: Valencia County
	Governing Body: Valencia County
	chair or designee: 
	Date approved: August 17th


